
 
GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
March 1, 2024 

 
Open to the public 

9:00 AM Governmental Center – Committee Room 
400 Boardman Ave, Traverse City, MI 49684 

                                                                                                                                                           
Persons with disabilities which the foregoing opportunities for participation will not address should 
contact Darcey Gratton at (231) 932-3010 or dgratton@gtpavilions.org with questions or concerns.   

AGENDA 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
 

2. ROLL CALL  
 

3. FIRST PUBLIC COMMENT 
Any person shall be permitted to address a meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of 
Health and Human Services Board which is required to be open to the public under the provisions 
of the Michigan Open Meetings Act, as amended.  (MCLA 15.261, et.seq.)  Public comment shall 
be carried out in accordance with the following Board Rules and Procedures: 

1. Any person wishing to address the Board shall state his or her name and address. 
2. Persons may address the Board on matters which are relevant to Grand Traverse 

Pavilions issues. 
3. No person shall be allowed to speak more than once on the same matter, excluding time 

needed to answer Board Members questions.  The Chairperson shall control the amount 
of time each person shall be allowed to speak, which shall not exceed three (3) minutes. 

a) Chairperson may, at his or her discretion, extend the amount of time any person is 
allowed to speak. 

b) Whenever a group wishes to address the Board, the Chairperson may require that 
the group designate a spokesperson; the Chairperson shall control the amount of 
time the spokesperson shall be allowed to speak, which shall not exceed fifteen 
(15) minutes. 

 
The Board shall not comment or respond to a person who is addressing the Board.  Silence or 
non-response from the Board should not be interpreted as disinterest or disagreement by the 
Board. 
 
Please be respectful and refrain from personal or political attacks. 
 

4. COUNTY LIAISON REPORT 
 

5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping items to be dealt with by 

one Board motion without discussion.  Any member of the Board, or staff may ask that any item 

on the consent calendar be removed and placed elsewhere on the agenda for discussion.  Such 

requests will be automatically respected. 

 

 



If any item is not removed from the consent calendar, the item on the agenda is approved by a 

single Board action adopting the consent calendar. 

 

A.  Review and File           HANDOUT# 
(1)       Minutes of the 1/25/24 Board Meeting     1 
(2)       Resident Council Minutes       2 

   
7. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
8. CHAIRMAN REPORT          Verbal 

 

9. SERVICE EXCELLANCE AWARDS        3 
 

10. GRAND TRAVERSE MEDICAL CARE  
A.  General Information           

(1)       Foundation Board Update – Haider Kazim     Verbal  
(2)       PACE North Board Update       Verbal  
   

B.  Chief Executive Officer Board Report – Gerard Bodalski    4 
 

C.  Business 
(1)    Financials         5 

(2)       Strategic Planning         Verbal 

(3)       Request to Purchase – Fire Suppression Head Replacement  6 

(4)       Approval of Retroactive Pay       Verbal 

 

D.  General Discussion 
(1)   Schedule Study Session – Policies & Board Rules    Verbal 
(2)       Correspondence        Verbal 
(3)       Change of Meeting Date        Verbal 

              
G.T.P. Announcements   

(1)     Next Board Meeting March 28, 2024 
      

11. SECOND PUBLIC COMMENT 
Refer to Rules under First Public Comment above. 
 

12. CLOSED SESSION Added 
(1) Closed session pursuant to section 8(e) of the Open Meetings Act, to consult with our 

attorney regarding trial or settlement strategy in connection with pending litigation, 
DHHS and the Grand Traverse Pavilions Foundation Board v PACE North.   

 
13. ADJOURNMENT 



DRAFT  

 

1 
 

GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 

1000 Pavilions Circle, Traverse City, MI 49684 
 

MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 25, 2024 MEETING 

 
PRESENT: Cecil McNally, Mary Marois         Board  
  Gerard Bodalski, David Hautamaki, Lindsey Dood,  
  Diane Mallory, Darcey Gratton        Staff  
  TJ Andrews                 Commission 
 
ABESENT: Haider Kazim                 Board 
         
GUESTS:  

 
The regular meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services 
Board was called to order at 9:07am by Board Chair Mary Marois at the Garfield Township Hall.    

 
Introduction of CEO/Administrator – Marois welcomed Gerard Bodalski as the new 
CEO/Administrator.  Bodalski gave an overview of his prior experience. 

 
First Public Comment – None  
 
County Liaison Report – Andrews shared discussions of the most recent County Board of 
Commissioner (BOC) meetings. 
 
Approval of Agenda – Chair Marois asked if there were additions, changes or corrections to 
the agenda.  Motion was made by McNally to approve the agenda as presented, seconded by 
Marois.  Motion carried.    
      
The purpose of the Consent Calendar is to expedite business by grouping items to be dealt 
with by one Board motion without discussion.  Any member of the Board or staff may ask that 
any item on the Consent Calendar be removed and placed elsewhere on the agenda for 
discussion.  Such requests will be automatically respected.  

 
REVIEW AND FILE 
  

(1)       Minutes of the 12/28/23 Board Meeting 
(2)       Closed Minutes of the 12/28/23 Board Meeting 
(3)       Resident Council Minutes  
(4)       Food Committee Minutes 

  
Marois requested to pull (4) Food Committee Minutes.  Motion was made by McNally to approve 
the Consent Calendar with the removal of (4) Food Committee Minutes.  Motion seconded by 
Marois.  Motion carried. 
 
Items Removed From Consent Calendar – Marois pulled (4) Food Committee Minutes for 
Hautimaki to give an update on the goals of the Food Committee.  Hautimaki shared food 
concerns were previously addressed in Resident Council minutes but now food committee has  
recently been created to specifically address dietary concerns and choices for all residents.   
 

Page 3 of 45

dgratton
Text Box
1



DRAFT  

 

2 
 

Chairman Report – Marois explained that quite a few agenda items will be kept on the agendas 
going forward to remind the board of business they will continue to discuss.   
 
Service Excellence Awards – Marois requested to move this agenda item to the beginning of 
the meeting to give more time and recognition for the Service Excellence Awards instated of 
being rushed at the end of the meeting.  Marie shared December Service Excellence Awards. 
 
Fourth Quarter Overtime Report – Hautimaki reviewed the report with no questions by the 
board. 
 
QAPI Quarterly Update – Hautimaki gave an update on the Quality Assurance/Performance 
Improvement (QAPI) quarterly meeting.  
  
Foundation Board Update – None  
 
Fourth Quarter Foundation Financials – Dood provided the fourth quarter Foundation 
Financials and answered board members questions.  Andrews inquired if there was an update 
on a new Fund Developer.  Marois stated the Foundation Board has not met this year yet but 
will have Kazim give an update on the Foundation at the next DHHS Board meeting.   
 
Prepare for Annual Report To Grand Traverse County – Marois reviewed the requirement to 
make an annual report to Grand Traverse County as well as provide an update on financial 
status per the request of the County Commissioners.  Marois requested to keep this topic in 
mind along with other items that can be discussed in a strategic planning meeting.  Both 
Andrews and County Chair, Rob Hentchel recognized the fact that the Pavilions is in a transition 
period with a new CEO/Administrator and understands a delay with a 2023 report.  Marois 
stated she will work with Bodalski and County Administrator Nate Alger on arranging a day to be 
on the Board of Commissioners agenda or an extended public comment to provide an update at 
one of their meetings.   
   
Chief Executive Officer Report – Hautamaki reviewed the monthly report for December and 
answered board members’ questions.  
 
Financial Report – Dood presented the financial operations and social accountability reports 
for December 2023 and answered board member’s questions.  Dood provided and reviewed 
updated reports.  Hautimaki gave an update on the Cottages.  Motion made by McNally to 
accept the financial operations report as presented.  Motion seconded by Marois.  Motion 
carried. 
 
PACE North Board Update – Marois stated an agreement has been made between PACE 
North and the Grand Traverse Pavilions through a mediation process.  An agreement is 
contingent on the Grand Traverse County being able to reach an agreement with PACE North 
on the county owned building PACE North currently is occupying.   
 
Marois stated PACE North Board reappointments are up at the end of January and the DHHS 
Board is responsible for approving all of their reappointments.  Marois stated that because an 
agreement has not been finalized, she recommended to re-appoint all of the PACE North Board 
members for another year through January 2025.   McNally added a caveat and requested for 
PACE North to update their bylaws for good governance to have a rotation for three year terms 
and nine year limits instead of all Board members being re-appointed at the same time.  
 

Page 4 of 45



DRAFT  

 

3 
 

Motion made by Marois to re-appoint all of the current PACE North Board members to a term 
beginning February 1, 2024 through January 31, 2025. Motion seconded by McNally.  Motion 
carried. 
 
Motion made by McNally to request for the PACE Board to adopt term limits, stagger board 
terms and to amend PACE North bylaws to show these revisions. Motion seconded by Marois.  
Motion carried. 
 
Request to Purchase – Fire Suppression Head Replacement – Marois removed this agenda 
item as requested by staff and to be revisited at a later time. 
 
Authorized Representative – Marois reviewed the proposed resolution to change the authority 
to sign for Grand Traverse Pavilions for daily operations.  Motion was made by Marois to accept 
Resolution 2024-1 as presented authorizing Gerard Bodalski as the authorized power with full 
authority to sign paperwork on behalf of the Board for daily operations of the Grand Traverse 
Pavilions.  Motion seconded by McNally.  Motion carried. 
 
LeaderStat Invoice – Marois reviewed an invoice from LeaderStat for a permanent search of a 
CEO/Administrator totaling $38,000 as expected in the contract.  Marois received prior approval 
by the board but wanted to shared the invoice before payment. Motion made by McNally to 
support the payment of $38,000 to LeaderStat for their services on the CEO/Administrator 
search.  Motion seconded by Marois.  Motion carried.  
 
Revisit Strategic Plan – Marois explained this topic will continue to be on the agenda for the 
Board to go back to the original plan shared in 2022.  Marois requested for both Kazim and 
Bodalski to receive the original strategic plan to be able to review and for Bodalski to make 
recommendations to the Board to move forward.  Dood stated he would review the document 
with Bodalski.  McNally requested to closely look at the condition of the Cottages the potential 
need for updates to be competitive in the area.   
 
Policies – Marois requested for Gratton to pull together all policies that are approved by the 
Board and to be kept in chronological order to allow policies to be reviewed and renewed in a 
timely matter and will help new Board members familiarize with Board responsibilities.  Marois 
stated no discussion was needed at this time but will be an ongoing agenda item until this is 
completed. 
 
Board Rules – Marois stated no discussion was needed at this time but will also be an ongoing 
agenda item until they are completed.  Marois stated the Board does plan to have a study 
session on establishing new board rules and that the draft was provided in the packet to begin 
the process of creating one. 
 
Correspondence – Marois shared that at the last board meeting, Kazim requested to 
acknowledge a letter written by staff and believed for it to be part of the packet as public 
comment.  Marois tabled this discussion for the next meeting to include Kazim who was absent 
for this meeting. 
 
Change of Board Meeting Dates for February and April – The Board discussed moving the 
February 29th meeting to Friday, March 1st at 9:00am and the April 25th meeting to Monday, April 
29th at 9:00am due to a scheduling conflict.  Location to be determined.  Motion made by 
McNally to move the February meeting to March 1st and the April meeting to the 29th. Motion 
seconded by Marois.  Motion carried. 

Page 5 of 45



DRAFT  

 

4 
 

 
Attending/Consulting Privileges - The Board reviewed the requests to have consulting 
privileges for Charles Markle, DPM, Larence Rubin, DPM and Ann Marie Buchner, AUD as 
recommended by Medical Director Dr. April Kurkowski, D.O. Motion was made by McNally to 
approve Charles Markle, DPM, Larence Rubin, DPM and Ann Marie Buchner, AUD for 
consulting privileges as presented, seconded by Marois and carried unanimously. 
 
Grand Traverse Pavilions Announcements  

(1) Next Board Meeting March 1, 2024  
 
Second Public Comment  
Linda Pepper 
 
Meeting adjourned at 10:58 am 
 
Signatures:  
 
 
 

Mary Marois – Chair 
Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
 
Date:                                   Approved 
                                   Corrected and Approved 
 

Page 6 of 45



Page 1 of 6 
 

PAVILIONS RESIDENT COUNCIL MEETING  
January 18, 2024 

 
The January 2024 meeting of the Grand Traverse Pavilions Resident Council was 
called to order at 11:04am in the Multi-Purpose Room by Kari Belanger, CTRS. 
 
All residents were welcomed. 
The residents waived their right to a closed meeting. 
The Lord’s Prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance were recited. 
 
Members present were introduced: 
Birch Pavilion: 6 residents attended. Residents are marked X throughout the minutes.    
Cherry Pavilion: 6 residents attended. Residents are marked X throughout the 
minutes. 
Dogwood Pavilion: 4 residents attended. Residents are marked X throughout the 
minutes. 
    
Staff members were introduced: 
Kari Belanger, CTRS, Life Enrichment  
Linda Burton, CTRS, Life Enrichment  
Chrissy Wagatha, RN, ADON – Rehab Pavilion 
Naomi Rode, RN, ADON – Dogwood & Elm Pavilion 
Cindi Pobuda, LBSW – Dogwood & Elm Pavilion Social Work 
Christian Anderson, General Manager – Forefront Dining Services 
Melissa Morey, RD – Registered Dietician, Forefront Dining Services 
Lisa Telling, Dietary Administrative Assistant – Forefront Dining Services 
Tim Coggins, Environmental Services Director 
Cati Kujawski, Environmental Services Manager 
 
Old Business: 
There was not any old business from the December Resident Council meetings that 
needed to be brought up for discussion or to follow up on. 
 
New Business: 
Kari asked those present at the meeting the following questions regarding the format of 
how they would like the meetings in 2024 to be held as we are now having one large 
meeting each for residents of all pavilions instead of a meeting on each pavilion each 
month. 
*Would everyone like to say the Pledge of Allegiance before each meeting? All  

residents present said yes. 
*Would everyone like to say the Lord’s Prayer before each meeting? All residents  

present said yes. 
*Would residents like to have a private Resident Council Meeting of just residents? 

All residents present said no. 
*Who would residents like to have present at the Resident Council Meetings? All  

Page 7 of 45

dgratton
Text Box
2



Page 2 of 6 
 

residents present said residents and staff, including Dietary and Environmental 
Services when they are able. 

*Who would residents like to take notes and type the notes up following the meeting? 
All residents present said to have staff take notes and type them up. 

 
Kari made the following announcements:  
Introduction of Chrissy Wagatha as she will be assuming the Cherry ADON/nurse  

manager position in a few weeks as Marta Pratt (current Cherry ADON) transitions 
into a Staff Development position at the Pavilions. 

Gerard Bodalski will be our new Administrator/CEO of the Grand Traverse Pavilions  
and will be starting his new role in the next few weeks. Residents present at the 
meeting said they would like to meet with Gerard and have him come to a future 
resident council meeting. 

** Kari will share this request with Darcey Gratton, Administrative Assistant, to 
discuss with Gerard when he officially begins working here. 

Popcorn Fridays – various locations throughout the building (Birch-Dogwood) –  
starting Friday January 19 at 3:00pm in the Multi-Purpose Room. 

Mocktails – starting Tuesday January 24, 2024, at 3:30pm in the Aspen Main Dining  
Room. Please come down to have a mocktail and visit with friends before the dinner 
hour. Melissa and Christian from Forefront Dining Services will be helping out with 
this new and fun activity. 

 
Outings for February 2024: 
Thursday February 8 – Lunch at Flap Jack Shack (suggested by X) 
 Board bus at 11:00am, return pick-up to come home at 1:30pm 
Thursday February 15 – Lunch & Gambling at Leelanau Sands Casino (suggested by  

X & X) 
Board bus at 10:30am, return pick-up to come home at 3:00pm 

 
Residents present at the meeting signed up for the outing of their choosing as 
well as an alternate outing if they desired. 

 
February Special Events: 
Friday February 2 – Catholic Mass with Father Joe – 11:00am – Multi-Purpose Room 
Friday February 2 – Popcorn Friday & Now Showing: Groundhog Day (movie) – 2:30pm  

– Multi-Purpose Room 
Friday February 9 – Lunch Order-In: Pizza Lunch – 12:00pm-1:30pm – Multi-Purpose  

Room 
Residents present at the meeting signed up for this activity if they desired. 

Monday February 12 – Decorate Valentines Cookies – 11:00am – Cherry Activity Room 
Tuesday February 13 – Paczki & Mocktails Party – 3:00pm – Aspen Main Dining Room 
Wednesday February 14 – Prayer & Message with Pastor Kent – 11:00am – Multi- 

Purpose Room 
Wednesday February 14 – Valentines Day Social – 3:00pm – Multi-Purpose Room 
 

Page 8 of 45



Page 3 of 6 
 

Thursday February 22 – National Chili Day: Chili Cook-Off (Residents and Staff to  
participate and make various chili’s) 

 
Resident Group Interview Questions: 
Kari discussed with the attending residents that there are 12 resident rights that can be 
reviewed during the group interview with the State Surveyors during our annual survey, 
and today we will be reviewing Rules. 
Rules:  

• What are some of the rules of this facility? For instance, rules about what time 
residents go to bed at night or when to get up in the morning?  

X: The 10:00pm quiet hour is working out beautifully, it’s a success. 
X: We don’t allow people to smoke in the building or around it outside. 

 
• Are there any rules you would like to discuss? 

Nothing was mentioned or brought forward for discussion by residents present. 
 

• Do you have input into the rules of this facility? 
X: Yes. 
X: Yes. However, I would like to see or have rooms with kitchenettes available to 
us, so that we can warm things up in a microwave. 

Tim Coggins told everyone present that microwaves are not allowed in 
resident rooms due to the state fire code. X said, “Thank you.” No further 
discussion. 

 
• Does the facility listen to your suggestions? 

Residents present at the meeting nodded their heads up and down and said 
“yes.” No further comments or discussion. 

1.  Discussion regarding food temperature and receiving HS snacks. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
**Kari thanked all residents present at the Resident Council Meeting and commented 
that many residents present today attended the Let’s Talk Food meeting that was held 
on January 9, 2024; and that many if not all of their comments from the December 2023 
Resident Council Meetings were brought up for continued discussion at the food talk 
meeting held last week. 
**Kari reminded everyone present that the next Let’s Talk Food meeting will be held on 
Tuesday March 12, 2024, at 3:00pm and encouraged everyone to attend. 
 
X: The chef salads need more sliced hard-boiled eggs in them and no red onion  

slices. I would like to see and have ring bologna, more cheesecake for desserts 
and more choices for soups. The cooks are overcooking the baked beans. 

• X agreed with X about the baked beans and also said that the beans do not have 
any flavor to them. 

X: The soups are terrible. The chicken noodle soup didn’t have any noodles in it.  
The staff are still ordering for me and not asking me what I would like to have. 

Page 9 of 45



Page 4 of 6 
 

Kari told X that she would let Marta know of this and ask Marta to meet with X 
privately to discuss further. 

X: When is the new turkey lunchmeat going to be used? 
Christian told all present that the remainder of the sliced turkey product was to be 
used up by this evening with the Hot Turkey & Swiss sandwiches, and the new 
product will be introduced very soon. X asked to be reminded of when the new 
lunchmeat would be on the menu so that she could have it. 

X: There needs to be more helpers in the dining rooms at mealtimes. I have  
trouble cutting up my food and the staff do help me, but there is not enough staff  
in the dining room to help everyone all the time. 

• X said that she agreed with X. 
X: There needs to be more Jell-O for dessert. 
X: We need to have tuna salad and chicken salad more often. There needs to  

be more hard-boiled eggs in the potato salad. Could we have some good chicken 
wings sometime? I would love some chicken wings. 

X: We are served too many green beans and peas; we need to have other  
vegetables. 

X: I would like to have more fish. 

• X agreed and said that she would like to have cod. X agreed and said that there 
needs to be a different kind of fish, not pollack. 

 
2.  Discussion regarding the cleanliness of the facility and laundry being returned 
promptly. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
X: They are all good. 
X: The housekeeping staff are excellent. 
 
3.  Discussion regarding room temperature. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
X: My room is good. 
X: It is fine.  
X: My room is good too. 
X: My room is cold sometimes. 
X: The windowsill in my room, when I touch it, it is ice cold; and there is a huge  

icicle hanging outside my window too. 
Tim offered to X to have the Maintenance team install plastic film over X’s 
window to help with the cold. X said, “yes, thank you.” 

• X told everyone that she found that having a blanket rolled up and placed on the 
windowsill helps with the cold air or feeling of cold in the room. 

 
 
 
 

Page 10 of 45



Page 5 of 6 
 

4.  Discussion regarding nursing care. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
X: The nurses and staff are A-one! They are great! 
X: The staff are very kind and courteous. 
X: They are all great, but we could use some more nurse aides to help us out.  

Sometimes it feels like there are not enough of them to help us when we need 
help. 

• X said, “I agree.” 
 
5.  Discussion regarding call lights being answered in a timely manner. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
X: I would say pretty much, but it also depends on who is on and taking care of me. 
X: I have a wrist button and I push it, but I don’t know if it is working or not. 

Kari offered to help X check to see if her wrist call button was working or not after 
the meeting. X thanked Kari for this; following the meeting, X pushed the wrist 
call button while going down the hallway and the light outside X’s room did turn 
on and X said, “I see that it is on.” 

X: No one ever looks down the hallway to my room when they come out of the  
office. I have talked about it at every meeting and still, no one looks my way to 
see if I need help. 

 
6.  Discussion regarding receiving showers as needed/as requested. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions:         
All residents present at the meeting said, “Yes.”      

 
7. Discussion regarding the nighttime noise level on their home Pavilion. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
All residents present at the meeting said, “Yes.” 
X: Birch is perfect. The 10:00pm quiet rule is working out beautifully. 
 
The floor was opened for additional comments: 
X: Please schedule another Dollar Tree shopping trip but not on Monday &  

Wednesdays because of the medicine I take, and also not on Tuesday because 
of bingo. 

 
The next Pavilions Resident Council meeting will be held on Thursday February 15, 2024, 
at 11:00am in the Multi-Purpose Room. Kari asked for a volunteer to read over and sign 
the January 2024 minutes, and no one said they would do this. X said, “All of us here 
heard what was discussed. We don’t need to sign them.” The Pavilions Resident Council 
Meeting was adjourned at 12:14pm by X, seconded by X. 
 

Page 11 of 45



Page 6 of 6 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
_____________________________  __________________________   
Kari Belanger, CTRS    Cindi Pobuda, LBSW 
Recreational Therapist               Dogwood & Elm Pavilion Social Work 
 
 
 

Page 12 of 45



ELM RESIDENT COUNCIL MEETING  
January 25, 2024 

 
The Elm January 2024 meeting of the Grand Traverse Pavilions Resident Council was 
called to order at 10:30am in the Elm Activity Room by Linda Burton. 
 
Members present were: 
 9 residents attended. Residents marked X throughout the minutes.  
  
Staff members were introduced: 
Linda Burton, CTRS, Life Enrichment  
Cindi Pobuda, LBSW – Elm Pavilion Social Work 
 
New Business: 
Linda made the following announcements: 
Popcorn Fridays – various locations throughout the building (Birch-Dogwood) –  

starting Friday January 19 at 3:00pm in the Multi-Purpose Room. 
Mocktails – starting Tuesday January 24, 2024, at 3:30pm in the Aspen Main Dining  

Room. Please come down to have a mocktail and visit with friends before the dinner 
hour. Melissa and Christian from Forefront Dining Services will be helping out with 
this new and fun activity. 

 
Outings for February 2024: 
Thursday February 8 – Lunch at Flap Jack Shack (suggested by X) 
 Board bus at 11:00am, return pick-up to come home at 1:30pm 
Thursday February 15 – Lunch & Gambling at Leelanau Sands Casino (suggested by  

X & X) 
Board bus at 10:30am, return pick-up to come home at 3:00pm 

 
Residents present at the meeting signed up for the outing of their choosing as 
well as an alternate outing if they desired. 

 
February Special Events: 
Friday February 2 – Catholic Mass with Father Joe – 11:00am – Multi-Purpose Room 
Friday February 2 – Popcorn Friday & Now Showing: Groundhog Day (movie) – 2:30pm  

– Multi-Purpose Room 
Friday February 9 – Lunch Order-In: Pizza Lunch – 12:00pm-1:30pm – Multi-Purpose  

Room 
Residents present at the meeting signed up for this activity if they desired. 

Monday February 12 – Decorate Valentines Cookies – 11:00am – Cherry Activity Room 
Tuesday February 13 – Paczki & Mocktails Party – 3:00pm – Aspen Main Dining Room 
Wednesday February 14 – Prayer & Message with Pastor Kent – 11:00am – Multi- 

Purpose Room 
Wednesday February 14 – Valentines Day Social – 3:00pm – Multi-Purpose Room 
 
Thursday February 22 – National Chili Day: Chili Cook-Off (Residents and Staff to  

Page 13 of 45



participate and make various chili’s) 
               
Residents were asked for ideas for future activities: None suggested. 

 
Resident Group Interview Questions: 
1.  Asked the residents, “If you need help, do the staff come to help you?”  Residents 
nodded. X said, “That’s good.”   
 
2.  Asked the residents if they were being offered an evening snack.  X said, “Yes.”  X 
said, “Pretty good, not every day.” 
 
3.  Asked the residents if the staff treat them with respect.  X said, “Yes.”  X said, 
“Good.” 
 
4.  Asked the residents if the food is good here.  X said, “I liked it”.  X said, “Yeah it is.” 
 
5.  Asked the residents if their rooms are clean.  X and X said, “Yes.” 
 
6.  Asked the residents if their clothes came back from the laundry clean.  X, X, and X 
said, “Yes.” 
 
7.  Asked the residents if the temperature in their rooms was comfortable.  All said, 
“Yes.” 
 
8.  Asked the residents if they had enough to do.  X said, “Yes.” 
 
9.  Asked the residents if there is anything we could do to make things better.  There 
were no suggestions. 
 
The floor was opened for additional comments: 
No other concerns or complaints were noted.  The meeting adjourned at 10:50am. 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
________________________________  ______________________________ 
Linda Burton , CTRS    Cindi Pobuda, LBSW 
Recreational Therapist               Elm Pavilion Social Work 
 
 
 

Page 14 of 45



GRAND TRAVERSE PAVILIONS 

Service Excellence Award Program 

January 2024 

  

Date: 01/01/2024 
Employee: Kim Rosso 

Awarded for: 
Recognized by a rehab client "I was very impressed by the helpfulness and 
professionalism I received from these therapists. I also appreciated their sense of 
humor!  Perfect 5!".  Thank you Kim! 

Position: Physical Therapist 

Nominated by: Amy Coneset 

  

Date: 01/01/2024 
Employee: Valerie Trejo 

Awarded for: 
Hard-working, compassionate, always willing to pick up and assist when needed. Thank 
you for being responsive to cottage needs and offering your time as often as you do, we 
appreciate you! 

Position: Nurse Aide 

Nominated by: Shelby Mack 

  

Date: 01/08/2024 
Employee: Renee Doswell 

Awarded for: 

Renee donates her time and talent to beautify the bulletin boards in the wellness center. 
She always picks fun themes that brighten the days of staff and clients. She truly loves 
the people we serve. Thank you Renee for your positive spirit and all that you do for 
GTP! 

Position: Aquatics Trainer 

Nominated by: Amy Coneset 

  

Date: 01/08/2024 
Employee: Amanda Prance 

Awarded for: Thank you for covering admissions on Friday. 
Position: Scheduling Coordinator  

Nominated by: Kristen Packard  

  

Date: 01/15/2024 
Employee: Sam Baker 

Awarded for: 
She did all day shift showers for January 13th, and got up a lot of people in anticipation 
of call in's due to the snow storm. Thanks for thinking ahead.  
Great team work. 

Position:  CNA 

Nominated by: Donita Stokes 

 
 
 

Page 15 of 45

dgratton
Text Box
3



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Date: 01/15/2024 
Employee: Mackenzie Beeman 

Awarded for: 
Amazing job working with a resident and completing his walking program. She went 
above and beyond teaching him additional movements using his walker. 

Position:  CNA 

Nominated by: Kim Rosso 

Date: 01/22/2024 
Employee: Carrie Delk 

Awarded for: 
Thank you for all the late nights.  I see you sending emails late and appreciate that you 
try to tie up loose ends.  You do a great job in role and are a really valuable resource to 
both GTP and MMC. 

Position:  Admissions Coordinator  

Nominated by: Kristen Packard 

Date: 01/22/2024 
Employee: Jeff Valentine 

Awarded for: 
Thank you for being so kind to all the residents.  You speak so clearly and calmly.  Your 
residents really appreciate you. 

Position:  CNA 

Nominated by: Kristen Packard 

Date: 01/29/2024 
Employee: Kristi Clark 

Awarded for: 
Thank you, Kristi, for working extra hours this week - both during your lunch period and 
coming in on a day off to ensure our patients are able to receive the physical therapy 
services that they need. 

Position:  Physical Therapist Assistant 

Nominated by: Chris Hinze 

Date: 01/29/2024 
Employee: Sarah Pleva  

Awarded for: 
Thank you for the work you do with families and the way you communicate.  You are 
very articulate and informative.  I appreciate you and enjoy working with you. 

Position:  Social Worker 

Nominated by: Kristen Packard  

Page 16 of 45



Page 17 of 45

dgratton
Text Box
4



2 
 

 
Dietary 
In January, Dining Services held a “Let’s Talk Food” meeting to discuss meal ideas and 
ask residents to make recommendations and suggestions on meals.  
 
Environmental Services 
On January 5, Blarney Castle Oil collected a sample of the fuel from our generator, to 
be sent for annual testing.  This is required by our life safety code, and ensures that the 
fuel is suitable to run the generator in a power outage. 
 
On January 8, Graham Motor and Generator performed the annual preventive 
maintenance and 4-hour load bank test on our backup generator.  It was found that the 
batteries need replacement.  Graham ordered the batteries. 
 
On January 9, Tim Coggins, Environmental Services Director, Diane Mallory, Human 
Resources Director, and Kristen Packard, Director of Nursing, attended the Traverse 
Area Human Resources Association meeting, that included a presentation by Grand 
Traverse County Emergency Management Coordinator regarding emergency 
preparedness.  During the presentation, we learned that Gregg Bird could perform a 
critical infrastructure protection survey at our facility, as well as assist in active shooter 
drills.  We have contacted him for further information. 
 
On January 11, Coggins and Cati Kujawski, Environmental Services Manager, attended 
cottage resident meeting, and discussed our staffing and some of the projects we are 
working on related to cottage issues. 
 
On January 12, Coggins was informed that the new building electrical transformer will 
be shipping out in the near future and will be scheduled for installation once it has been 
received. 
 
On January 12, Coggins met with Russell Abbott of Total Fire Protection to get a quote 
for replacement of the quick-response fire suppression sprinkler heads in our facility. 
 
On January 16, Coggins and Kujawski met with Josh King of Floor Covering Brokers to 
discuss the upcoming tile regrout project in the main building kitchen. 
 
On January 17, there was a fire alarm at Evergreen Cottage at 7:30 AM.  Staff and the 
fire department responded.  The alarm was triggered by breakfast prep.  The fire 
department cleared the building and reset the alarm system.  Staff did a great job 
responding to the alarm. 
 
On January 18, John E. Green Company replaced a controller on one of our heating 
boilers.  This controller had failed, and we were running on only one boiler. 
 
On January 19, Graham Motor and Generator replaced the four batteries in the backup 
generator. 
 
On January 19, Coggins met with Scot Hopkins of Summit Fire Protection to get a quote 
for replacement of the quick-response fire suppression sprinkler heads in our facility. 
 

Page 18 of 45



3 
 

On January 31, Coggins and Kujawski met with the entire Environmental Services staff 
to reinforce our expectations of the department, and go over a few changes that we 
need to make as a department to better serve the organization. 
 
Wellness Center 
The Wellness Center saw the following patients this month:  Medicare A: 28; Medicare 
Advantage Skilled: 35; Medicare B: Outpatient: 19; Medicare B: Inpatient: 31; Medicare 
B Advantage: Outpatient 36; Inpatient 12; Private Insurance: Outpatient: 13; Private 
Insurance: Inpatient:5; Work compensation: Outpatient: 0; Private pay: Outpatient: 0; 
Private pay: Inpatient: 1. Auto: Outpatient: 2; Auto: Inpatient:1. 
 
On January 16, Kristen Semeyn, Physical Therapist, started as Wellness Center 
Director and Chris Heinz, Physical Therapist, started as part-time Outpatient Therapy 
Manager. 
 
On January 24, John Delossantos, President of JMD Healthcare and Wellness Center 
Director, made a site visit. 
 
Activities 
Kari Belanger and Linda Burton, Recreational Therapists, completed a total of 41 video 
chats over FaceTime or Google Duo. 
 
Activities, Special Events and Outings that occurred in January included: Catholic Mass, 
Rosary and live streaming various local church services; outings for lunch at China Fair 
and shopping at The Dollar Tree; making & enjoying chocolate covered cherries, root 
beer floats, strawberry ice cream treats, homemade peanut butter cookies, and having 
hot chocolate & donuts. Residents played bingo, Yahtzee, Shut the Box and jumbo dice 
games, feather duster balloon ball, UNO, and animal races. The movie-theater style 
popcorn machine was brought back to life and is popping fresh popcorn on Friday 
afternoons along with showing of a movie on the big screen in the Multi-Purpose Room 
for all residents, staff and family members. On Tuesday January 23 and January 30, 
Mocktails made their debut with Melissa Morey & Jill Telling from Forefront Dining 
Services tending the bar and making up delicious non-alcoholic drinks for the residents 
and their visitors to enjoy. On Monday January 29, Tyler Forland, owner of Tyler’s 
Exotics & Mobile Petting Zoo, stopped at the Pavilions and brought a spider monkey, 
tarantula, bearded dragon, turtle, macaw and huge snake for the residents, staff, 
daycare kids and visitors to see and hold – the monkey, Caesar, was a huge hit as he 
walked around the room and climbed up on resident’s laps and pulled at kids ears; and 
the daycare kids were in awe of the snake as they all lined up together to hold the 
snake in their outstretched arms.  
 
On January 9, residents gathered with Christian and Gregory of Forefront Dining 
Services for Let’s Talk Food. On January 18, we introduced and implemented having 
one large Resident Council meeting for residents on all pavilions to come together to 
meet instead of having a meeting on each individual pavilion.  
 

Page 19 of 45



Page 20 of 45

dgratton
Text Box
5



Page 21 of 45



Page 22 of 45



Page 23 of 45



Page 24 of 45



Page 25 of 45



Page 26 of 45



Page 27 of 45



Page 28 of 45



Page 29 of 45



Page 30 of 45



Page 31 of 45



Page 32 of 45



Page 33 of 45



Page 34 of 45



Page 35 of 45



Page 36 of 45

dgratton
Text Box
6



Page 37 of 45



Page 38 of 45



Page 39 of 45



Page 40 of 45



Page 41 of 45



Page 42 of 45



Page 43 of 45



Page 44 of 45



Page 45 of 45



 
GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
March 1, 2024 

 
Open to the public 

9:00 AM Governmental Center – Committee Room 
400 Boardman Ave, Traverse City, MI 49684 

                                                                                                                                                           
Persons with disabilities which the foregoing opportunities for participation will not address should 
contact Darcey Gratton at (231) 932-3010 or dgratton@gtpavilions.org with questions or concerns.   

AGENDA 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
 

2. ROLL CALL  
 

3. FIRST PUBLIC COMMENT 
Any person shall be permitted to address a meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of 
Health and Human Services Board which is required to be open to the public under the provisions 
of the Michigan Open Meetings Act, as amended.  (MCLA 15.261, et.seq.)  Public comment shall 
be carried out in accordance with the following Board Rules and Procedures: 

1. Any person wishing to address the Board shall state his or her name and address. 
2. Persons may address the Board on matters which are relevant to Grand Traverse 

Pavilions issues. 
3. No person shall be allowed to speak more than once on the same matter, excluding time 

needed to answer Board Members questions.  The Chairperson shall control the amount 
of time each person shall be allowed to speak, which shall not exceed three (3) minutes. 

a) Chairperson may, at his or her discretion, extend the amount of time any person is 
allowed to speak. 

b) Whenever a group wishes to address the Board, the Chairperson may require that 
the group designate a spokesperson; the Chairperson shall control the amount of 
time the spokesperson shall be allowed to speak, which shall not exceed fifteen 
(15) minutes. 

 
The Board shall not comment or respond to a person who is addressing the Board.  Silence or 
non-response from the Board should not be interpreted as disinterest or disagreement by the 
Board. 
 
Please be respectful and refrain from personal or political attacks. 
 

4. COUNTY LIAISON REPORT 
 

5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping items to be dealt with by 

one Board motion without discussion.  Any member of the Board, or staff may ask that any item 

on the consent calendar be removed and placed elsewhere on the agenda for discussion.  Such 

requests will be automatically respected. 

 

 



If any item is not removed from the consent calendar, the item on the agenda is approved by a 

single Board action adopting the consent calendar. 

 

A.  Review and File           HANDOUT# 
(1)       Minutes of the 1/25/24 Board Meeting     1 
(2)       Resident Council Minutes       2 

   
7. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
8. CHAIRMAN REPORT          Verbal 

 

9. SERVICE EXCELLANCE AWARDS        3 
 

10. GRAND TRAVERSE MEDICAL CARE  
A.  General Information           

(1)       Foundation Board Update – Haider Kazim     Verbal  
(2)       PACE North Board Update       Verbal  
   

B.  Chief Executive Officer Board Report – Gerard Bodalski    4 
 

C.  Business 
(1)    Financials         5 

(2)       Strategic Planning         Verbal 

(3)       Request to Purchase – Fire Suppression Head Replacement  6 

(4)       Approval of Retroactive Pay       Verbal 

 

D.  General Discussion 
(1)   Schedule Study Session – Policies & Board Rules    Verbal 
(2)       Correspondence        Verbal 
(3)       Change of Meeting Date        Verbal 

              
G.T.P. Announcements   

(1)     Next Board Meeting March 28, 2024 
      

11. SECOND PUBLIC COMMENT 
Refer to Rules under First Public Comment above. 
 

12. CLOSED SESSION 
(1)   

 
13. ADJOURNMENT 



DRAFT  

 

1 
 

GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 

1000 Pavilions Circle, Traverse City, MI 49684 
 

MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 25, 2024 MEETING 

 
PRESENT: Cecil McNally, Mary Marois         Board  
  Gerard Bodalski, David Hautamaki, Lindsey Dood,  
  Diane Mallory, Darcey Gratton        Staff  
  TJ Andrews                 Commission 
 
ABESENT: Haider Kazim                 Board 
         
GUESTS:  

 
The regular meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services 
Board was called to order at 9:07am by Board Chair Mary Marois at the Garfield Township Hall.    

 
Introduction of CEO/Administrator – Marois welcomed Gerard Bodalski as the new 
CEO/Administrator.  Bodalski gave an overview of his prior experience. 

 
First Public Comment – None  
 
County Liaison Report – Andrews shared discussions of the most recent County Board of 
Commissioner (BOC) meetings. 
 
Approval of Agenda – Chair Marois asked if there were additions, changes or corrections to 
the agenda.  Motion was made by McNally to approve the agenda as presented, seconded by 
Marois.  Motion carried.    
      
The purpose of the Consent Calendar is to expedite business by grouping items to be dealt 
with by one Board motion without discussion.  Any member of the Board or staff may ask that 
any item on the Consent Calendar be removed and placed elsewhere on the agenda for 
discussion.  Such requests will be automatically respected.  

 
REVIEW AND FILE 
  

(1)       Minutes of the 12/28/23 Board Meeting 
(2)       Closed Minutes of the 12/28/23 Board Meeting 
(3)       Resident Council Minutes  
(4)       Food Committee Minutes 

  
Marois requested to pull (4) Food Committee Minutes.  Motion was made by McNally to approve 
the Consent Calendar with the removal of (4) Food Committee Minutes.  Motion seconded by 
Marois.  Motion carried. 
 
Items Removed From Consent Calendar – Marois pulled (4) Food Committee Minutes for 
Hautimaki to give an update on the goals of the Food Committee.  Hautimaki shared food 
concerns were previously addressed in Resident Council minutes but now food committee has  
recently been created to specifically address dietary concerns and choices for all residents.   
 

Page 3 of 45

dgratton
Text Box
1



DRAFT  

 

2 
 

Chairman Report – Marois explained that quite a few agenda items will be kept on the agendas 
going forward to remind the board of business they will continue to discuss.   
 
Service Excellence Awards – Marois requested to move this agenda item to the beginning of 
the meeting to give more time and recognition for the Service Excellence Awards instated of 
being rushed at the end of the meeting.  Marie shared December Service Excellence Awards. 
 
Fourth Quarter Overtime Report – Hautimaki reviewed the report with no questions by the 
board. 
 
QAPI Quarterly Update – Hautimaki gave an update on the Quality Assurance/Performance 
Improvement (QAPI) quarterly meeting.  
  
Foundation Board Update – None  
 
Fourth Quarter Foundation Financials – Dood provided the fourth quarter Foundation 
Financials and answered board members questions.  Andrews inquired if there was an update 
on a new Fund Developer.  Marois stated the Foundation Board has not met this year yet but 
will have Kazim give an update on the Foundation at the next DHHS Board meeting.   
 
Prepare for Annual Report To Grand Traverse County – Marois reviewed the requirement to 
make an annual report to Grand Traverse County as well as provide an update on financial 
status per the request of the County Commissioners.  Marois requested to keep this topic in 
mind along with other items that can be discussed in a strategic planning meeting.  Both 
Andrews and County Chair, Rob Hentchel recognized the fact that the Pavilions is in a transition 
period with a new CEO/Administrator and understands a delay with a 2023 report.  Marois 
stated she will work with Bodalski and County Administrator Nate Alger on arranging a day to be 
on the Board of Commissioners agenda or an extended public comment to provide an update at 
one of their meetings.   
   
Chief Executive Officer Report – Hautamaki reviewed the monthly report for December and 
answered board members’ questions.  
 
Financial Report – Dood presented the financial operations and social accountability reports 
for December 2023 and answered board member’s questions.  Dood provided and reviewed 
updated reports.  Hautimaki gave an update on the Cottages.  Motion made by McNally to 
accept the financial operations report as presented.  Motion seconded by Marois.  Motion 
carried. 
 
PACE North Board Update – Marois stated an agreement has been made between PACE 
North and the Grand Traverse Pavilions through a mediation process.  An agreement is 
contingent on the Grand Traverse County being able to reach an agreement with PACE North 
on the county owned building PACE North currently is occupying.   
 
Marois stated PACE North Board reappointments are up at the end of January and the DHHS 
Board is responsible for approving all of their reappointments.  Marois stated that because an 
agreement has not been finalized, she recommended to re-appoint all of the PACE North Board 
members for another year through January 2025.   McNally added a caveat and requested for 
PACE North to update their bylaws for good governance to have a rotation for three year terms 
and nine year limits instead of all Board members being re-appointed at the same time.  
 

Page 4 of 45



DRAFT  

 

3 
 

Motion made by Marois to re-appoint all of the current PACE North Board members to a term 
beginning February 1, 2024 through January 31, 2025. Motion seconded by McNally.  Motion 
carried. 
 
Motion made by McNally to request for the PACE Board to adopt term limits, stagger board 
terms and to amend PACE North bylaws to show these revisions. Motion seconded by Marois.  
Motion carried. 
 
Request to Purchase – Fire Suppression Head Replacement – Marois removed this agenda 
item as requested by staff and to be revisited at a later time. 
 
Authorized Representative – Marois reviewed the proposed resolution to change the authority 
to sign for Grand Traverse Pavilions for daily operations.  Motion was made by Marois to accept 
Resolution 2024-1 as presented authorizing Gerard Bodalski as the authorized power with full 
authority to sign paperwork on behalf of the Board for daily operations of the Grand Traverse 
Pavilions.  Motion seconded by McNally.  Motion carried. 
 
LeaderStat Invoice – Marois reviewed an invoice from LeaderStat for a permanent search of a 
CEO/Administrator totaling $38,000 as expected in the contract.  Marois received prior approval 
by the board but wanted to shared the invoice before payment. Motion made by McNally to 
support the payment of $38,000 to LeaderStat for their services on the CEO/Administrator 
search.  Motion seconded by Marois.  Motion carried.  
 
Revisit Strategic Plan – Marois explained this topic will continue to be on the agenda for the 
Board to go back to the original plan shared in 2022.  Marois requested for both Kazim and 
Bodalski to receive the original strategic plan to be able to review and for Bodalski to make 
recommendations to the Board to move forward.  Dood stated he would review the document 
with Bodalski.  McNally requested to closely look at the condition of the Cottages the potential 
need for updates to be competitive in the area.   
 
Policies – Marois requested for Gratton to pull together all policies that are approved by the 
Board and to be kept in chronological order to allow policies to be reviewed and renewed in a 
timely matter and will help new Board members familiarize with Board responsibilities.  Marois 
stated no discussion was needed at this time but will be an ongoing agenda item until this is 
completed. 
 
Board Rules – Marois stated no discussion was needed at this time but will also be an ongoing 
agenda item until they are completed.  Marois stated the Board does plan to have a study 
session on establishing new board rules and that the draft was provided in the packet to begin 
the process of creating one. 
 
Correspondence – Marois shared that at the last board meeting, Kazim requested to 
acknowledge a letter written by staff and believed for it to be part of the packet as public 
comment.  Marois tabled this discussion for the next meeting to include Kazim who was absent 
for this meeting. 
 
Change of Board Meeting Dates for February and April – The Board discussed moving the 
February 29th meeting to Friday, March 1st at 9:00am and the April 25th meeting to Monday, April 
29th at 9:00am due to a scheduling conflict.  Location to be determined.  Motion made by 
McNally to move the February meeting to March 1st and the April meeting to the 29th. Motion 
seconded by Marois.  Motion carried. 

Page 5 of 45



DRAFT  

 

4 
 

 
Attending/Consulting Privileges - The Board reviewed the requests to have consulting 
privileges for Charles Markle, DPM, Larence Rubin, DPM and Ann Marie Buchner, AUD as 
recommended by Medical Director Dr. April Kurkowski, D.O. Motion was made by McNally to 
approve Charles Markle, DPM, Larence Rubin, DPM and Ann Marie Buchner, AUD for 
consulting privileges as presented, seconded by Marois and carried unanimously. 
 
Grand Traverse Pavilions Announcements  

(1) Next Board Meeting March 1, 2024  
 
Second Public Comment  
Linda Pepper 
 
Meeting adjourned at 10:58 am 
 
Signatures:  
 
 
 

Mary Marois – Chair 
Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
 
Date:                                   Approved 
                                   Corrected and Approved 
 

Page 6 of 45



Page 1 of 6 
 

PAVILIONS RESIDENT COUNCIL MEETING  
January 18, 2024 

 
The January 2024 meeting of the Grand Traverse Pavilions Resident Council was 
called to order at 11:04am in the Multi-Purpose Room by Kari Belanger, CTRS. 
 
All residents were welcomed. 
The residents waived their right to a closed meeting. 
The Lord’s Prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance were recited. 
 
Members present were introduced: 
Birch Pavilion: 6 residents attended. Residents are marked X throughout the minutes.    
Cherry Pavilion: 6 residents attended. Residents are marked X throughout the 
minutes. 
Dogwood Pavilion: 4 residents attended. Residents are marked X throughout the 
minutes. 
    
Staff members were introduced: 
Kari Belanger, CTRS, Life Enrichment  
Linda Burton, CTRS, Life Enrichment  
Chrissy Wagatha, RN, ADON – Rehab Pavilion 
Naomi Rode, RN, ADON – Dogwood & Elm Pavilion 
Cindi Pobuda, LBSW – Dogwood & Elm Pavilion Social Work 
Christian Anderson, General Manager – Forefront Dining Services 
Melissa Morey, RD – Registered Dietician, Forefront Dining Services 
Lisa Telling, Dietary Administrative Assistant – Forefront Dining Services 
Tim Coggins, Environmental Services Director 
Cati Kujawski, Environmental Services Manager 
 
Old Business: 
There was not any old business from the December Resident Council meetings that 
needed to be brought up for discussion or to follow up on. 
 
New Business: 
Kari asked those present at the meeting the following questions regarding the format of 
how they would like the meetings in 2024 to be held as we are now having one large 
meeting each for residents of all pavilions instead of a meeting on each pavilion each 
month. 
*Would everyone like to say the Pledge of Allegiance before each meeting? All  

residents present said yes. 
*Would everyone like to say the Lord’s Prayer before each meeting? All residents  

present said yes. 
*Would residents like to have a private Resident Council Meeting of just residents? 

All residents present said no. 
*Who would residents like to have present at the Resident Council Meetings? All  

Page 7 of 45

dgratton
Text Box
2



Page 2 of 6 
 

residents present said residents and staff, including Dietary and Environmental 
Services when they are able. 

*Who would residents like to take notes and type the notes up following the meeting? 
All residents present said to have staff take notes and type them up. 

 
Kari made the following announcements:  
Introduction of Chrissy Wagatha as she will be assuming the Cherry ADON/nurse  

manager position in a few weeks as Marta Pratt (current Cherry ADON) transitions 
into a Staff Development position at the Pavilions. 

Gerard Bodalski will be our new Administrator/CEO of the Grand Traverse Pavilions  
and will be starting his new role in the next few weeks. Residents present at the 
meeting said they would like to meet with Gerard and have him come to a future 
resident council meeting. 

** Kari will share this request with Darcey Gratton, Administrative Assistant, to 
discuss with Gerard when he officially begins working here. 

Popcorn Fridays – various locations throughout the building (Birch-Dogwood) –  
starting Friday January 19 at 3:00pm in the Multi-Purpose Room. 

Mocktails – starting Tuesday January 24, 2024, at 3:30pm in the Aspen Main Dining  
Room. Please come down to have a mocktail and visit with friends before the dinner 
hour. Melissa and Christian from Forefront Dining Services will be helping out with 
this new and fun activity. 

 
Outings for February 2024: 
Thursday February 8 – Lunch at Flap Jack Shack (suggested by X) 
 Board bus at 11:00am, return pick-up to come home at 1:30pm 
Thursday February 15 – Lunch & Gambling at Leelanau Sands Casino (suggested by  

X & X) 
Board bus at 10:30am, return pick-up to come home at 3:00pm 

 
Residents present at the meeting signed up for the outing of their choosing as 
well as an alternate outing if they desired. 

 
February Special Events: 
Friday February 2 – Catholic Mass with Father Joe – 11:00am – Multi-Purpose Room 
Friday February 2 – Popcorn Friday & Now Showing: Groundhog Day (movie) – 2:30pm  

– Multi-Purpose Room 
Friday February 9 – Lunch Order-In: Pizza Lunch – 12:00pm-1:30pm – Multi-Purpose  

Room 
Residents present at the meeting signed up for this activity if they desired. 

Monday February 12 – Decorate Valentines Cookies – 11:00am – Cherry Activity Room 
Tuesday February 13 – Paczki & Mocktails Party – 3:00pm – Aspen Main Dining Room 
Wednesday February 14 – Prayer & Message with Pastor Kent – 11:00am – Multi- 

Purpose Room 
Wednesday February 14 – Valentines Day Social – 3:00pm – Multi-Purpose Room 
 

Page 8 of 45



Page 3 of 6 
 

Thursday February 22 – National Chili Day: Chili Cook-Off (Residents and Staff to  
participate and make various chili’s) 

 
Resident Group Interview Questions: 
Kari discussed with the attending residents that there are 12 resident rights that can be 
reviewed during the group interview with the State Surveyors during our annual survey, 
and today we will be reviewing Rules. 
Rules:  

• What are some of the rules of this facility? For instance, rules about what time 
residents go to bed at night or when to get up in the morning?  

X: The 10:00pm quiet hour is working out beautifully, it’s a success. 
X: We don’t allow people to smoke in the building or around it outside. 

 
• Are there any rules you would like to discuss? 

Nothing was mentioned or brought forward for discussion by residents present. 
 

• Do you have input into the rules of this facility? 
X: Yes. 
X: Yes. However, I would like to see or have rooms with kitchenettes available to 
us, so that we can warm things up in a microwave. 

Tim Coggins told everyone present that microwaves are not allowed in 
resident rooms due to the state fire code. X said, “Thank you.” No further 
discussion. 

 
• Does the facility listen to your suggestions? 

Residents present at the meeting nodded their heads up and down and said 
“yes.” No further comments or discussion. 

1.  Discussion regarding food temperature and receiving HS snacks. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
**Kari thanked all residents present at the Resident Council Meeting and commented 
that many residents present today attended the Let’s Talk Food meeting that was held 
on January 9, 2024; and that many if not all of their comments from the December 2023 
Resident Council Meetings were brought up for continued discussion at the food talk 
meeting held last week. 
**Kari reminded everyone present that the next Let’s Talk Food meeting will be held on 
Tuesday March 12, 2024, at 3:00pm and encouraged everyone to attend. 
 
X: The chef salads need more sliced hard-boiled eggs in them and no red onion  

slices. I would like to see and have ring bologna, more cheesecake for desserts 
and more choices for soups. The cooks are overcooking the baked beans. 

• X agreed with X about the baked beans and also said that the beans do not have 
any flavor to them. 

X: The soups are terrible. The chicken noodle soup didn’t have any noodles in it.  
The staff are still ordering for me and not asking me what I would like to have. 

Page 9 of 45



Page 4 of 6 
 

Kari told X that she would let Marta know of this and ask Marta to meet with X 
privately to discuss further. 

X: When is the new turkey lunchmeat going to be used? 
Christian told all present that the remainder of the sliced turkey product was to be 
used up by this evening with the Hot Turkey & Swiss sandwiches, and the new 
product will be introduced very soon. X asked to be reminded of when the new 
lunchmeat would be on the menu so that she could have it. 

X: There needs to be more helpers in the dining rooms at mealtimes. I have  
trouble cutting up my food and the staff do help me, but there is not enough staff  
in the dining room to help everyone all the time. 

• X said that she agreed with X. 
X: There needs to be more Jell-O for dessert. 
X: We need to have tuna salad and chicken salad more often. There needs to  

be more hard-boiled eggs in the potato salad. Could we have some good chicken 
wings sometime? I would love some chicken wings. 

X: We are served too many green beans and peas; we need to have other  
vegetables. 

X: I would like to have more fish. 

• X agreed and said that she would like to have cod. X agreed and said that there 
needs to be a different kind of fish, not pollack. 

 
2.  Discussion regarding the cleanliness of the facility and laundry being returned 
promptly. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
X: They are all good. 
X: The housekeeping staff are excellent. 
 
3.  Discussion regarding room temperature. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
X: My room is good. 
X: It is fine.  
X: My room is good too. 
X: My room is cold sometimes. 
X: The windowsill in my room, when I touch it, it is ice cold; and there is a huge  

icicle hanging outside my window too. 
Tim offered to X to have the Maintenance team install plastic film over X’s 
window to help with the cold. X said, “yes, thank you.” 

• X told everyone that she found that having a blanket rolled up and placed on the 
windowsill helps with the cold air or feeling of cold in the room. 

 
 
 
 

Page 10 of 45



Page 5 of 6 
 

4.  Discussion regarding nursing care. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
X: The nurses and staff are A-one! They are great! 
X: The staff are very kind and courteous. 
X: They are all great, but we could use some more nurse aides to help us out.  

Sometimes it feels like there are not enough of them to help us when we need 
help. 

• X said, “I agree.” 
 
5.  Discussion regarding call lights being answered in a timely manner. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
X: I would say pretty much, but it also depends on who is on and taking care of me. 
X: I have a wrist button and I push it, but I don’t know if it is working or not. 

Kari offered to help X check to see if her wrist call button was working or not after 
the meeting. X thanked Kari for this; following the meeting, X pushed the wrist 
call button while going down the hallway and the light outside X’s room did turn 
on and X said, “I see that it is on.” 

X: No one ever looks down the hallway to my room when they come out of the  
office. I have talked about it at every meeting and still, no one looks my way to 
see if I need help. 

 
6.  Discussion regarding receiving showers as needed/as requested. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions:         
All residents present at the meeting said, “Yes.”      

 
7. Discussion regarding the nighttime noise level on their home Pavilion. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
All residents present at the meeting said, “Yes.” 
X: Birch is perfect. The 10:00pm quiet rule is working out beautifully. 
 
The floor was opened for additional comments: 
X: Please schedule another Dollar Tree shopping trip but not on Monday &  

Wednesdays because of the medicine I take, and also not on Tuesday because 
of bingo. 

 
The next Pavilions Resident Council meeting will be held on Thursday February 15, 2024, 
at 11:00am in the Multi-Purpose Room. Kari asked for a volunteer to read over and sign 
the January 2024 minutes, and no one said they would do this. X said, “All of us here 
heard what was discussed. We don’t need to sign them.” The Pavilions Resident Council 
Meeting was adjourned at 12:14pm by X, seconded by X. 
 

Page 11 of 45



Page 6 of 6 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
_____________________________  __________________________   
Kari Belanger, CTRS    Cindi Pobuda, LBSW 
Recreational Therapist               Dogwood & Elm Pavilion Social Work 
 
 
 

Page 12 of 45



ELM RESIDENT COUNCIL MEETING  
January 25, 2024 

 
The Elm January 2024 meeting of the Grand Traverse Pavilions Resident Council was 
called to order at 10:30am in the Elm Activity Room by Linda Burton. 
 
Members present were: 
 9 residents attended. Residents marked X throughout the minutes.  
  
Staff members were introduced: 
Linda Burton, CTRS, Life Enrichment  
Cindi Pobuda, LBSW – Elm Pavilion Social Work 
 
New Business: 
Linda made the following announcements: 
Popcorn Fridays – various locations throughout the building (Birch-Dogwood) –  

starting Friday January 19 at 3:00pm in the Multi-Purpose Room. 
Mocktails – starting Tuesday January 24, 2024, at 3:30pm in the Aspen Main Dining  

Room. Please come down to have a mocktail and visit with friends before the dinner 
hour. Melissa and Christian from Forefront Dining Services will be helping out with 
this new and fun activity. 

 
Outings for February 2024: 
Thursday February 8 – Lunch at Flap Jack Shack (suggested by X) 
 Board bus at 11:00am, return pick-up to come home at 1:30pm 
Thursday February 15 – Lunch & Gambling at Leelanau Sands Casino (suggested by  

X & X) 
Board bus at 10:30am, return pick-up to come home at 3:00pm 

 
Residents present at the meeting signed up for the outing of their choosing as 
well as an alternate outing if they desired. 

 
February Special Events: 
Friday February 2 – Catholic Mass with Father Joe – 11:00am – Multi-Purpose Room 
Friday February 2 – Popcorn Friday & Now Showing: Groundhog Day (movie) – 2:30pm  

– Multi-Purpose Room 
Friday February 9 – Lunch Order-In: Pizza Lunch – 12:00pm-1:30pm – Multi-Purpose  

Room 
Residents present at the meeting signed up for this activity if they desired. 

Monday February 12 – Decorate Valentines Cookies – 11:00am – Cherry Activity Room 
Tuesday February 13 – Paczki & Mocktails Party – 3:00pm – Aspen Main Dining Room 
Wednesday February 14 – Prayer & Message with Pastor Kent – 11:00am – Multi- 

Purpose Room 
Wednesday February 14 – Valentines Day Social – 3:00pm – Multi-Purpose Room 
 
Thursday February 22 – National Chili Day: Chili Cook-Off (Residents and Staff to  

Page 13 of 45



participate and make various chili’s) 
               
Residents were asked for ideas for future activities: None suggested. 

 
Resident Group Interview Questions: 
1.  Asked the residents, “If you need help, do the staff come to help you?”  Residents 
nodded. X said, “That’s good.”   
 
2.  Asked the residents if they were being offered an evening snack.  X said, “Yes.”  X 
said, “Pretty good, not every day.” 
 
3.  Asked the residents if the staff treat them with respect.  X said, “Yes.”  X said, 
“Good.” 
 
4.  Asked the residents if the food is good here.  X said, “I liked it”.  X said, “Yeah it is.” 
 
5.  Asked the residents if their rooms are clean.  X and X said, “Yes.” 
 
6.  Asked the residents if their clothes came back from the laundry clean.  X, X, and X 
said, “Yes.” 
 
7.  Asked the residents if the temperature in their rooms was comfortable.  All said, 
“Yes.” 
 
8.  Asked the residents if they had enough to do.  X said, “Yes.” 
 
9.  Asked the residents if there is anything we could do to make things better.  There 
were no suggestions. 
 
The floor was opened for additional comments: 
No other concerns or complaints were noted.  The meeting adjourned at 10:50am. 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
________________________________  ______________________________ 
Linda Burton , CTRS    Cindi Pobuda, LBSW 
Recreational Therapist               Elm Pavilion Social Work 
 
 
 

Page 14 of 45



GRAND TRAVERSE PAVILIONS 

Service Excellence Award Program 

January 2024 

  

Date: 01/01/2024 
Employee: Kim Rosso 

Awarded for: 
Recognized by a rehab client "I was very impressed by the helpfulness and 
professionalism I received from these therapists. I also appreciated their sense of 
humor!  Perfect 5!".  Thank you Kim! 

Position: Physical Therapist 

Nominated by: Amy Coneset 

  

Date: 01/01/2024 
Employee: Valerie Trejo 

Awarded for: 
Hard-working, compassionate, always willing to pick up and assist when needed. Thank 
you for being responsive to cottage needs and offering your time as often as you do, we 
appreciate you! 

Position: Nurse Aide 

Nominated by: Shelby Mack 

  

Date: 01/08/2024 
Employee: Renee Doswell 

Awarded for: 

Renee donates her time and talent to beautify the bulletin boards in the wellness center. 
She always picks fun themes that brighten the days of staff and clients. She truly loves 
the people we serve. Thank you Renee for your positive spirit and all that you do for 
GTP! 

Position: Aquatics Trainer 

Nominated by: Amy Coneset 

  

Date: 01/08/2024 
Employee: Amanda Prance 

Awarded for: Thank you for covering admissions on Friday. 
Position: Scheduling Coordinator  

Nominated by: Kristen Packard  

  

Date: 01/15/2024 
Employee: Sam Baker 

Awarded for: 
She did all day shift showers for January 13th, and got up a lot of people in anticipation 
of call in's due to the snow storm. Thanks for thinking ahead.  
Great team work. 

Position:  CNA 

Nominated by: Donita Stokes 

 
 
 

Page 15 of 45

dgratton
Text Box
3



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Date: 01/15/2024 
Employee: Mackenzie Beeman 

Awarded for: 
Amazing job working with a resident and completing his walking program. She went 
above and beyond teaching him additional movements using his walker. 

Position:  CNA 

Nominated by: Kim Rosso 

Date: 01/22/2024 
Employee: Carrie Delk 

Awarded for: 
Thank you for all the late nights.  I see you sending emails late and appreciate that you 
try to tie up loose ends.  You do a great job in role and are a really valuable resource to 
both GTP and MMC. 

Position:  Admissions Coordinator  

Nominated by: Kristen Packard 

Date: 01/22/2024 
Employee: Jeff Valentine 

Awarded for: 
Thank you for being so kind to all the residents.  You speak so clearly and calmly.  Your 
residents really appreciate you. 

Position:  CNA 

Nominated by: Kristen Packard 

Date: 01/29/2024 
Employee: Kristi Clark 

Awarded for: 
Thank you, Kristi, for working extra hours this week - both during your lunch period and 
coming in on a day off to ensure our patients are able to receive the physical therapy 
services that they need. 

Position:  Physical Therapist Assistant 

Nominated by: Chris Hinze 

Date: 01/29/2024 
Employee: Sarah Pleva  

Awarded for: 
Thank you for the work you do with families and the way you communicate.  You are 
very articulate and informative.  I appreciate you and enjoy working with you. 

Position:  Social Worker 

Nominated by: Kristen Packard  

Page 16 of 45



Page 17 of 45

dgratton
Text Box
4



2 
 

 
Dietary 
In January, Dining Services held a “Let’s Talk Food” meeting to discuss meal ideas and 
ask residents to make recommendations and suggestions on meals.  
 
Environmental Services 
On January 5, Blarney Castle Oil collected a sample of the fuel from our generator, to 
be sent for annual testing.  This is required by our life safety code, and ensures that the 
fuel is suitable to run the generator in a power outage. 
 
On January 8, Graham Motor and Generator performed the annual preventive 
maintenance and 4-hour load bank test on our backup generator.  It was found that the 
batteries need replacement.  Graham ordered the batteries. 
 
On January 9, Tim Coggins, Environmental Services Director, Diane Mallory, Human 
Resources Director, and Kristen Packard, Director of Nursing, attended the Traverse 
Area Human Resources Association meeting, that included a presentation by Grand 
Traverse County Emergency Management Coordinator regarding emergency 
preparedness.  During the presentation, we learned that Gregg Bird could perform a 
critical infrastructure protection survey at our facility, as well as assist in active shooter 
drills.  We have contacted him for further information. 
 
On January 11, Coggins and Cati Kujawski, Environmental Services Manager, attended 
cottage resident meeting, and discussed our staffing and some of the projects we are 
working on related to cottage issues. 
 
On January 12, Coggins was informed that the new building electrical transformer will 
be shipping out in the near future and will be scheduled for installation once it has been 
received. 
 
On January 12, Coggins met with Russell Abbott of Total Fire Protection to get a quote 
for replacement of the quick-response fire suppression sprinkler heads in our facility. 
 
On January 16, Coggins and Kujawski met with Josh King of Floor Covering Brokers to 
discuss the upcoming tile regrout project in the main building kitchen. 
 
On January 17, there was a fire alarm at Evergreen Cottage at 7:30 AM.  Staff and the 
fire department responded.  The alarm was triggered by breakfast prep.  The fire 
department cleared the building and reset the alarm system.  Staff did a great job 
responding to the alarm. 
 
On January 18, John E. Green Company replaced a controller on one of our heating 
boilers.  This controller had failed, and we were running on only one boiler. 
 
On January 19, Graham Motor and Generator replaced the four batteries in the backup 
generator. 
 
On January 19, Coggins met with Scot Hopkins of Summit Fire Protection to get a quote 
for replacement of the quick-response fire suppression sprinkler heads in our facility. 
 

Page 18 of 45



3 
 

On January 31, Coggins and Kujawski met with the entire Environmental Services staff 
to reinforce our expectations of the department, and go over a few changes that we 
need to make as a department to better serve the organization. 
 
Wellness Center 
The Wellness Center saw the following patients this month:  Medicare A: 28; Medicare 
Advantage Skilled: 35; Medicare B: Outpatient: 19; Medicare B: Inpatient: 31; Medicare 
B Advantage: Outpatient 36; Inpatient 12; Private Insurance: Outpatient: 13; Private 
Insurance: Inpatient:5; Work compensation: Outpatient: 0; Private pay: Outpatient: 0; 
Private pay: Inpatient: 1. Auto: Outpatient: 2; Auto: Inpatient:1. 
 
On January 16, Kristen Semeyn, Physical Therapist, started as Wellness Center 
Director and Chris Heinz, Physical Therapist, started as part-time Outpatient Therapy 
Manager. 
 
On January 24, John Delossantos, President of JMD Healthcare and Wellness Center 
Director, made a site visit. 
 
Activities 
Kari Belanger and Linda Burton, Recreational Therapists, completed a total of 41 video 
chats over FaceTime or Google Duo. 
 
Activities, Special Events and Outings that occurred in January included: Catholic Mass, 
Rosary and live streaming various local church services; outings for lunch at China Fair 
and shopping at The Dollar Tree; making & enjoying chocolate covered cherries, root 
beer floats, strawberry ice cream treats, homemade peanut butter cookies, and having 
hot chocolate & donuts. Residents played bingo, Yahtzee, Shut the Box and jumbo dice 
games, feather duster balloon ball, UNO, and animal races. The movie-theater style 
popcorn machine was brought back to life and is popping fresh popcorn on Friday 
afternoons along with showing of a movie on the big screen in the Multi-Purpose Room 
for all residents, staff and family members. On Tuesday January 23 and January 30, 
Mocktails made their debut with Melissa Morey & Jill Telling from Forefront Dining 
Services tending the bar and making up delicious non-alcoholic drinks for the residents 
and their visitors to enjoy. On Monday January 29, Tyler Forland, owner of Tyler’s 
Exotics & Mobile Petting Zoo, stopped at the Pavilions and brought a spider monkey, 
tarantula, bearded dragon, turtle, macaw and huge snake for the residents, staff, 
daycare kids and visitors to see and hold – the monkey, Caesar, was a huge hit as he 
walked around the room and climbed up on resident’s laps and pulled at kids ears; and 
the daycare kids were in awe of the snake as they all lined up together to hold the 
snake in their outstretched arms.  
 
On January 9, residents gathered with Christian and Gregory of Forefront Dining 
Services for Let’s Talk Food. On January 18, we introduced and implemented having 
one large Resident Council meeting for residents on all pavilions to come together to 
meet instead of having a meeting on each individual pavilion.  
 

Page 19 of 45



Page 20 of 45

dgratton
Text Box
5



Page 21 of 45



Page 22 of 45



Page 23 of 45



Page 24 of 45



Page 25 of 45



Page 26 of 45



Page 27 of 45



Page 28 of 45



Page 29 of 45



Page 30 of 45



Page 31 of 45



Page 32 of 45



Page 33 of 45



Page 34 of 45



Page 35 of 45



Page 36 of 45

dgratton
Text Box
6



Page 37 of 45



Page 38 of 45



Page 39 of 45



Page 40 of 45



Page 41 of 45



Page 42 of 45



Page 43 of 45



Page 44 of 45



Page 45 of 45


